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June 16, 2016 Job No. 8596.001 

Anna Louzon c/o Yolo County CSA Administrative Support Team 
625 Court Street, Room 202
Woodland, CA 95695

Subject: Willowbank County Service Area – Willowbank Farms, LLC Oakside 
Well Supplemental Well Evaluation 

Wood Rodgers, Inc. (Wood Rodgers) is pleased to provide the Water Subcommittee of the 
Willowbank County Service Area (CSA) with this supplemental well evaluation of an irrigation 
well (Oakside Well) owned by Willowbank Farms, LLC (Willowbank Farms).  The purpose of 
this evaluation is to determine if the Oakside Well is a viable option to serve the estimated 
irrigation demands in the CSA (approximately 600 gallons per minute with a 55 horsepower 
motor).  Previously owned by Nishikawa Farms, the well is located south of the CSA, 
approximately 1,200 feet south of Montgomery Avenue and 1,300 feet east of Drummond Lane, 
in Yolo County, as shown in Figure 1.  Nishikawa Farms leased the land to tenant growers, most 
recently to Robben Farms.  This report is intended to transmit research conducted to obtain data 
regarding the construction and operation of the agricultural well with respect to providing 
landscape irrigation water to the CSA.  A site visit was not a part of this scope of work. 

WELL RESEARCH 

Wood Rodgers’ research consisted of submitting record requests of well construction to the State of 
California Department of Water Resources (DWR) and Yolo County, interviewing previous 
owner/operators, and groundwater well pump contractors.  Our record request to both the DWR and 
Yolo County did not return a well record for this well, or any well on the land parcel. 

On contact with Tim Ruff, manager of Willowbank Farms, he indicated he did not have any records 
on the well and was only able to relay that the well is decades old. Wood Rodgers was directed to 
Spencer Bei who previously managed the property for Robben Farms.  Mr. Bei confirmed that the 
well in question was located approximately 1,200 feet south of Montgomery Avenue.  Mr. Bei 
indicated the well is equipped with a 30 horsepower (hp) motor and was consistently pumped at a 
flow rate of approximately 1,000 gallons per minute (gpm) over three or four irrigation seasons.  Mr. 
Bei also reported that approximately three or four years ago, Alsco-Geyer Irrigation, of Arbuckle, 
California, installed a new motor, pump, and column pipe, with a pump setting depth of 
approximately 180 feet.  He reported that there were no operational issues with the well.   
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Alsco-Geyer Irrigation was contacted to obtain records of the reported work.  Wood Rodgers was 
provided a well video inspection report, dated January 16, 2013 and work invoices dated March 20, 
2013 and August 29, 2013 (attached).  Below is a summary for each of the records: 

Well Video Survey Report 

The well video report was conducted by Sullivan Subterranean Services, of Orland, California.  The 
reason for the video inspection report is listed as “general inspection”.  

 Static water level was observed to be 36.3 feet
 Well pump setting depth was 90 feet
 The well casing is 12-inch inside diameter
 The well casing was reported to be broken at depths of 113 and 114 feet
 Well is screened from 106 feet to 131 feet
 Total measured depth is 131 feet (top of sediment fill)
 The well casing was reported to have heavy buildup

Alsco-Geyer Irrigation – Work Invoice Dated March 20, 2013 

 A 30 hp motor was installed (US Motor Mod/BF42 #H030525B)
 The pump was installed 90 feet of column pipe
 The pump bowls were reported to be repaired

Alsco-Geyer Irrigation – Work Invoice Dated August 29, 2013 

 New pump bowls were installed (Model JP12” DC-3Stage)
 120 feet of new column pipe was installed
 There is no line item for hp (it was noted on the email from Alsco-Geyer it may be

a 60 hp motor)

SUMMARY & CONCLUSIONS 

Based on the available records and anecdotal information, the Oakside Well is constructed to 
a depth of at least 131 feet, with well screen starting at 106 feet below the top of casing and 
continuing to 131 feet, with a horizontal slot (possibly louver) pattern.  The well casing is 
reported to have breaks (possible separation) at depths of 113 and 114 feet.  The blank well 
casing and well screen have heavy encrustation, which is typical of older wells.  The well was 
reported to produce upwards of 1,000 gpm over four irrigation seasons; however, no testing 
data (flow rate and pumping water level data) was available for review to assess this account.  

The pump and bowls were repaired/replaced twice in 2013, with no explanation as to the 
reason.  Additionally, the pump was lowered by 30 feet in August of 2013, from 90 feet to 120 
feet (which is inconsistent with the anecdotal information).  One possible reason for multiple 
pump/bowl replacements is that the well produces sand which can result in premature wear 
and failure of the pump bowls.  The breaks in the casing could also result in sand production, 
as well as a source for fill material in the bottom of the well.  As such, the well may deeper 
than recorded in the video survey. 
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From the available records, it appears the Oakside Well can provide the 600 gpm needed to 
service the Willowbank irrigation demand.  It also appears the existing 30 hp pump motor may 
not provide sufficient water pressures during peak usage.  However, it is difficult to provide a 
conclusion as to the remaining life of this well for landscape irrigation of the CSA.  The age 
of the well structure is unknown (however reported to be decades old) and its condition is 
undetermined with regard to the reported casing breaks and unknown reason(s) for multiple 
replacement of the pump bowls.  Well testing and production rates are currently unverified and 
water quality will still need to be assessed to determine if it is acceptable for the intended use.  
It is also difficult to determine if this well can meet the CSA objectives without further 
assessment. 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

 A site visit should be conducted to confirm the motor horsepower and to visually
assess the condition of the pumping station (i.e. motor condition, electrical,
discharge piping).

 Assuming adequate access for water level measurements and an existing flow
meter, conduct a pumping test with the existing pump to document groundwater
levels (static and pumping), flow rate, specific capacity (gallons pumped per foot
of water level drawdown), and sand production.

 Obtain water samples and analyze for suitability for landscape irrigation.
 Re-assess and prepare report to the feasibility of providing landscape irrigation

from this well.

Estimated costs to conduct the additional assessment, as outlined above, would be approximately 
$4,000.  Wood Rodgers would be pleased to provide a scope of work to conduct the additional 
assessment.  We look forward to assisting the Water Subcommittee of the Willowbank County 
Service Area with groundwater development to meet irrigation needs.  If you have any questions 
or if you need any additional information, please contact me at (916) 326-5368. 

Sincerely, 

Sean J. Spaeth, PG, CHG 
Project Hydrogeologist 

J:\Jobs\8596_Willowbank_CSA\Wells_GW\Docs\Reports\20160610_Willowbank_CSA_GW_Assessment_Report_Revised.docx 
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